
 
 
City of Lone Tree Planning Commission Agenda 
Tuesday, July 28, 2015 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree Planning Commission and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 6:00 p.m. in 

the lower level of the Civic Center.  The Regular Meeting will be convened at 6:30 p.m. in the City 
Council meeting room. Contact Jennifer Drybread, jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com if special 
arrangements are needed to attend (at least 24 hours in advance). Comments from the public are 
welcome during the Public Comment portion of the meeting (brief comments on items not 
appearing on the regular meeting agenda). Those persons requesting to comment on an agenda item 
will be called upon by the Chair. If you have any questions please contact Jennifer Drybread, 
Senior Planner, at jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com, or 303-708-1818. 

 
 

 
6:00 p.m. Study Session Agenda 

 
1. Administrative Matters 

 
6:30 p.m. Regular Meeting Agenda 

 
1. Opening of Meeting / Roll Call 

 
2. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 

 
3. Public Comment  

 
4. Minutes of the June 14, 2015 Planning Commission meeting 

 
5. Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 1 and Tract H, Project SB15-51, located between 

Parkway Drive and County Line Road and between Acres Green Drive and Willow 
Creek (automobile dealerships). Application proposes the subdivision of one lot into four 
lots, vacation of an access easement, and boundary modification to the east side of the 
property adjacent to Willow Creek to allow for a land swap between the applicant and the 
City. 
 

6. Parkway Filing 1, Tract H, Project ZR15-37, located west of Willow Creek and south of 
County Line Road, proposes the rezoning of 0.39 acres of land zoned Parks and Open 
Space (POS) to Commercial 1 (C1) zoning, for the purpose of constructing additional 
parking for automotive sales purposes. This is a public hearing. 
 

7. Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4, Project SP15-36, located west of Willow Creek and 
south of County Line Road, proposes a Site Improvement Plan for the purpose of adding 
parking, including landscaping, retaining wall, lighting, drainage improvements, etc. 
 

8. Adjournment 
 

 
 

mailto:jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com
mailto:jennifer.drybread@cityoflonetree.com


MINUTES OF THE 
Lone Tree Planning Commission Meeting 

July 14, 2015 
  

Lone Tree Civic Center 
 

1. Attendance 
 

In attendance were: 
 
Martha Sippel, Chair 
Dave Kirchner, Vice-Chair 
Rhonda Carlson, Planning Commissioner 
Andrew Dodgen, Planning Commissioner 
Roy Kline, Planning Commissioner 
Stephen Mikolajczak, Planning Commissioner 
Herb Steele, Planning Commissioner 
 
In attendance from city staff were: 
 
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
Hans Friedel, Planner II 

 
2. Regular Meeting Call to Order 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. with a quorum. 

 
3. Conflict of Interest 

 
Commissioner Kline recused himself from the RidgeGate III and Schwab 
Trainstation Circle Projects. 
 

4. Public Comment 
 

No members of the public spoke. 
 

5. Minutes of the June 23, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting 
 

Commissioner Carlson moved, and Commission Dodgen seconded, to approve 
the minutes of the June 23th meeting, and they were approved unanimously. 
 

6. RidgeGate III (Martin Fein) Apartments, Project SP15-29R, located east of 
Park Meadows Blvd. and south of Commonwealth Street in RidgeGate, 
proposes a 219-unit apartment building on 3.18 acres. 
 
 

1 
 



Ms. Drybread introduced the project consisting of a request for approval of a Site 
Improvement Plan (SIP) to construct a four-story, 219-unit multi-family apartment 
building on 3.18 acres in RidgeGate. The property is located in a commercial 
mixed use zone area that allows residential by right. The building design is in 
conformance with the City’s Design Guidelines. The building has undergone 
several significant changes since it was first proposed to the RidgeGate Design 
Review Committee (DRC). Building colors were modified to distinguish this 
building from the apartments to the north of this site, yet are compatible with 
surrounding development. 
 
Ms. Drybread introduced Mr. Darryl Jones with Coventry Development on behalf 
of RidgeGate to introduce the applicant. He reiterated that the project was 
consistent with subarea plan and other RidgeGate developments. He introduced 
Mr. Steinberg, the project architect, to present the development. 
 
Mr. Steinberg stated that the proposed multifamily project was similar in concept 
to The Vue, now AMLI, in that it is a four-story, courtyard-style multifamily 
complex wrapping around a five-story structured parking garage. The amenity 
center is located on top of the building. Compared to the AMLI, this building is 
more contemporary and features more prominent glazing and a lighter color 
palette per DRC recommendations. 
 
Commissioner Steele stated that it is an exciting project and he likes the clean 
look and colors. He inquired about the parking numbers. Mr. Steinberg said the 
ratio is 1.68 parking spaces per unit, 356 total, not including the street parking. 
They stated that this was comparable to parking ratios at AMLI and they are not 
aware of problems at that property. Mr. Steele stated that it used to be that the 
developers wanted less parking and the government more, and now they both 
are moving towards less parking. 
 
Mr. Tim Wooten, of Martin Fein, said they have extensive experience with 
parking and apartments of this kind. He said they are over the minimum parking 
requirement and, if anything, they probably have more parking than they need. 

  
Commissioner Steele said the concept of wrapping the parking with the units was 
good to limit visibility. He asked about ventilation in the garage. The applicant 
stated that the garage would be open on two sides. 

 
Commissioner Steele expressed concern about traffic on Park Meadows 
Boulevard, northbound, turning left (west) onto Lincoln Avenue.   

 
Commissioner Mikolajczak inquired of staff if there were traffic studies done for 
this project. Ms. First responded that these studies were conducted for the 
overall RidgeGate mixed-use development, but not specifically for this project. 
 

2 
 



Mr. Billy Harris, Civil Engineer, stated that due to signalization changes, a second 
left-turn lane on Lincoln may need to be activated (currently striped). Other than 
that, the project is not expected to negatively impact traffic. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak inquired as to whether Schwab employees were 
being asked to take specific routes to work to mitigate traffic, and stated that 
increased traffic in general is a quality of life issue. Commissioner Mikolajczak 
commented that other apartments to the south are in proximity to the recreation 
center, parks, and trails. He said he would like to see a small park in this area 
where residents can walk their dogs and socialize. Mr. Jones said they make an 
effort to locate housing with a mix of experiences (i.e., some are embedded in 
the community while others are in more urban locations). He said there will be 
easy pedestrian connections and trail improvements in the area as development 
builds out. Mr.Steinberg added that there is a small park to the east of the 
building. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak expressed concern that the material sample board 
looked darker than the colors represented by the building renderings. Mr. 
Steinberg described the location of each of the proposed materials and added 
that they were going to use a light mortar. Commissioner Mikolajczak said he 
really liked the design of the Chatham Drive side of the building and that 
distinguishing the look of this project from AMLI was good. 
 
Vice-Chair Kirchner stated that it was a nice project for Lone Tree. He inquired 
about the level of the amenity center relative to the parking. The applicant stated 
that it was on the sixth level, located on top of the garage. Parking ratios were 
described as generally 1 space for each bedroom. 
 
Vice-Chair Kirchner inquired if the only ingress-egress was on Trainstation Circle, 
and how many lanes were there. Mr. Steinberg stated affirmatively, and that 
there would be two lanes in and two lanes out to allow for guests to use the call 
box to access the unit. There was clarification provided about the location of 
amenities within the project. Vice-Chair Kirchner said the design of the corners of 
the building is a nice touch and that he really likes the project. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired if the applicant also designed Miramont - the 
applicant did. He stated that the he lived in the Miramont for six months, and 
observed there was adequate parking in the garage. He said the demand for 
parking was on-street, because of convenience. He stated that one issue with the 
apartments was picking up dog waste, and that many of the dog waste 
dispensers were out of bags, etc. Mr. Wooten said they can add waste stations 
but pointed out that that there was an approximate 20 by 40-foot space internal 
to the apartment where owners can walk their dogs without leaving the area.  
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired about sound attenuation for units on the east 
side where light rail would be located. The applicant responded that there would 
be proper insulation and sheet rock– the same treatment as at AMLI.  

3 
 



 
He inquired as to the location of metal window awnings, and the applicant stated 
that they would be on the lower levels. Applicant responded that the DRC wanted 
this project to be more streamlined architecturally than some of the other 
apartments like AMLI. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen stated that it was a good project and good for Lone Tree. 
 
Commissioner Carlson inquired if the basement-level parking would be where 
guests would park. Mr. Wooten stated that this had not been fully programmed 
yet, but will likely be for employees and prospective residents when on-street 
spaces are full. She commended the project for its well thought-out design, 
providing residential parking spaces next to each apartment. She said the best 
feature is the rooftop terrace, which should provide nice views for the residents, 
and continued that this was a very tasteful project for Lone Tree. 
  
Chair Sippel agreed that the project design was a complement to the area and 
inquired whether there would be any external doors from the units to the streets. 
Mr. Steinberg stated that only a small number of the ground-floor units along 
Trainstation Circle had stoops, but they did not access the street. 
 
Chair Sippel stated that she could not find the Pinyon Pines and Ponderosa Pine 
on the landscape plan. The landscape architect clarified the location of the pines 
- most of which are along the south side of the property, and indicated that one 
Ponderosa Pine had been removed. Chair Sippel encouraged the applicant to 
add a few Blue Spruce trees for variety, potentially on the west side that is visible 
to the most people. 
 
Chair Sippel wanted to reiterate what fellow commissioners have said about 
traffic concerns in the area. She observed that the light at the northbound left-
turn lane from Park Meadows to Westbound Lincoln Avenue only allowed six 
cars through at 3 PM, and stated that traffic patterns need to be reviewed. She 
stated that a second left-turn lane would help here. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajcazak suggested that it might be nice if there was more 
articulation, through color change, on the beige vertical elements in the 
lengthwise plane of the building. He asked Mr. Jones if there would be more 
projects like this. Mr. Jones responded that it was hard to say if there would be 
more multifamily residential on the west side, but there were no plans at this 
time.  
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak suggested that applicants bring design alternatives to 
the Planning Commission first, before the DRC process, as it’s often too late to 
make major changes once they come before the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Wooten added that the DRC was very active with this project, and that it had 
changed quite a bit from the original proposal.  

4 
 



 
Chair Sippel requested that future applicants show earlier versions of the designs 
to the Planning Commission so they have the opportunity to see the first and last 
designs during the the DRC process. This would allow them to more easily 
compare how the building design has changed. 
 
Commissioner Steele inquired as to whether any of the units were furnished. The 
applicant indicated they are not. Commissioner Steele commented that it was 
nice that resident parking could be on the same level as the unit, for ease of 
moving. Commissioner Steele inquired about bicycle parking facilities, as a lot of 
people tend to store bikes on the balconies. Mr. Wooten stated that there would 
be bicycle parking in the garage along with repair facility. He stated that they did 
not allow bicycles on the balconies. 

 
Vice Chair Kirchner moved to recommend approval of the SIP with three 
conditions stated in the staff report.  Commissioner Mikolajczak seconded, and 
the motion passed unanimously. 

 
7. Schwab Trainstation Circle, Project SP15-32R, located near the existing 

Charles Schwab I-25 highway sign in RidgeGate, proposes a single-story, 
5,000-square-foot office building. 
 
Mr. Friedel provided a brief overview of the project. The applicant intends to 
occupy this building with a financial advisory services center housing 
approximately 20 employees. He then introduced Mr. Darryl Jones with Coventry 
development, representing RidgeGate, to introduce the applicant. 
 
Mr. Jones stated that as this project was in the Sky Ridge Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) area, it was intended to be phased – consisting of the 
proposed office building first, then later a much larger development on the 
balance of the property as depicted in a building massing study completed by the 
applicant, consistent with the TOD subarea plan. He added that the intersection 
of Sky Ridge Avenue and Park Meadows Drive would be signalized by the end of 
the year – well in advance of upcoming apartments or this project. Furthermore, 
he indicated that RidgeGate and the City would continue to study the Lincoln 
Avenue-Park Meadows Drive intersection with the City. He then introduced Ms. 
Kelly Dunn, the Project Architect. 
 
Ms. Dunn stated that Schwab received permission to build the sign from the City 
and referred to Hans’ background of the project as explaining the situation. The 
proposed building would satisfy CDOT regulations and the architecture “recalls” 
the main Charles Schwab campus. She described the conceptual massing plan 
that indicates how the balance of the site could accommodate 52,000 square feet 
and structured parking for 205 cars and how it is demonstrative of the 
development potential of the remainder of the site. She continued that the 
position of the proposed office building on the site was dictated by the CDOT 
requirement that the building be within 50 feet of the sign. She provided an 

5 
 



overview of the landscape plan and described that the architectural character is a 
continuation of the Schwab campus to the west and the building provides 
architectural cues to visitors that reiterate this campus relationship  
 
Commissioner Carlson noted the project is straight-forward, as the materials and 
design are consistent with the Schwab campus. She asked whether the same 
type of interior “lantern” lighting would be visible from the second story windows 
as Schwab’s retail building at the main campus. Ms. Dunn responded that the 
lighting would be much more modest in this building. Commissioner Carlson 
asked about Schwab’s future plans for the balance of the site—whether Schwab 
would own or lease the property. Mr. Kevin Bernard and Mr. Anthony Nemec 
were in attendance from Charles Schwab, from Denver and San Francisco. Ms. 
Dunn stated their preference to sell the remainder of the site in the future. In the 
interim, Ms. Dunn confirmed the parcel will be fully landscaped. The perimeter of 
Trainstation Circle will be landscaped by the Rampart Range Metro District, with 
native grasses beyond this landscaped strip. She stated this will dress up and 
formalize the appearance of the site. She stated that the trash enclosure will be 
wrapped with plants. 
 
Commissioner Carlson stated that it was a straight-forward building. She inquired 
as to whether they would use the same type of interior lighting here as was used 
on the branch building at the main Schwab campus. Ms. Dunn responded that 
the lighting would be much more modest in this building. Commissioner Carlson 
asked if Schwab would own the balance of the site in the future, or lease. Mr. 
Kevin Bernard and Mr. Anthony Nemec were in attendance from Charles 
Schwab. Ms. Dunn stated their preference to sell the remainder of the site in the 
future. There was a question regarding the landscaping. Ms. Dunn responded 
that the perimeter of Trainstation Circle would be landscaped by the Rampart 
Range Metro District, with native grasses beyond this landscaped strip. She 
stated that this would dress up and formalize the appearance of the site. She 
stated that the trash enclosure was wrapped with plants. 
 
Chair Sippel stated that she liked the landscape plan and inquired as the height 
limit in this area. Mr. Friedel responded that it was 250 feet subject to FAA 
approval. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen thanked Charles Schwab for building in Lone Tree. He 
inquired as to whether the landscaped trees would block the sign – referring to 
RidgeGate Design Review Committee (DRC) comments included in the packet. 
Ms. Dunn responded that the trees were now close to the building to soften the 
edges, but not block the sign, and that they had been adjusted per DRC 
comments. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen stated that the building was close to the highway and 
very visible – and that it stands out as an island. He asked whether there was 
any concern with the “back of the building” along I-25. Ms. Dunn responded that 
the DRC and staff recommended 360-degree architecture, and that spandrel 

6 
 



glass was utilized on the east side of the building to disguise the service areas 
and continue the fenestration theme. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen further inquired about noise attenuation for the offices 
along I-25 due to the close proximity of the building to the highway. Ms. Dunn 
responded that insulated units were utilized and that there will be a corridor 
against the glass with internal offices located away from the outside wall. 

 
Vice Chair Kirchner inquired as to why a stone base below the glass, as 
requested by staff in the DRC notes, was not included. Ms. Dunn responded that 
this was so Charles Schwab would have the ability to add doors in the future. He 
added that considering the constraints they had to work with, this building was 
fairly nice.  
 
Vice Chair Kirchner inquired if the parking ratio was satisfied. Mr. Friedel 
responded that it was. He further inquired if bike racks were included, and Ms. 
Dunn responded that they were – they are located on the west side of the 
building near the front door. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak asked whether or not Charles Schwab would have 
purchased this site without the sign issue. Mr. Jones stated responded that this 
was always an option, but that the sign issue was a catalyst. He inquired if future 
buildings on the site could function as something else under separate ownership 
and not affect the sign issue. Mr. Jones responded that as long as the proposed 
office building remained occupied by Charles Schwab, then the other buildings 
could be under separate ownership. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak stated that he liked the building and it includes the 
look of other buildings on campus – especially the retail building which he loves. 
He likes that the building looks open to the highway, and due to its low profile, 
will help preserve an open view corridor from I-25 to the bluffs. 
 
Commissioner Steele stated that the building looked like a jewel box and nice 
place to work. He stated that he was glad that the “lantern” lights at the retail 
building were toned down on this building. He added that the future phasing 
massing plan might not truly represent the site as it depicted a shared driveway. 
Mr. Jones responded that future development would include a reciprocal parking 
agreement. 
 
Commissioner Steele furthered that it was a nice integration of building and 
existing highway sign, and that the office building would make the sign feel more 
intentional. 
 
Commissioner Dodgen inquired if the future Regional Transportation District 
(RTD) light rail bridge and I-25 flyover wrapping around the property would block 
views of the Charles Schwab sign from motorists approaching from the south on 
I-25. Ms. Dunn responded that there were potential impacts on the visibility of the 

7 
 



sign from a distance, but that Charles Schwab was aware of the future light rail 
crossing.  
 
Commissioner Dodgen asked Mr. Jones if developers can hold land for an 
indefinite time without building on it. Mr. Jones responded that they typically 
included contractual construction commencement provisions in their agreements 
with land purchasers; however, there was no hard timeframe with the second 
phase of this development. This would be included in their negotiations as they 
prefer development, not speculation. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak moved to recommend approval of SP15-32R subject 
to final approval from Public Works, and Vice Chair Kirchner seconded, and the 
motion passed unanimously, with Commissioner Kline abstaining due to a stated 
conflict of interest. 
 
 

8. City of Lone Tree Comprehensive Plan amendments, Project MI14-07 
(Public Hearing) 

 
Ms. Drybread introduced the Comprehensive Plan update, indicated that staff 
made the changes previously requested by the Commission, and stated that this 
update was before the Commission for a recommendation of approval to City 
Council. She invited discussion and comments. 
 
The commissioners shared a number of additional grammatical and format-
related edits that were recorded by staff that they will make prior to City Council 
review.  
 
Regarding the section on Plan Consistency (page 29), commissioners want to 
add “developers” to the list of those who benefit when development occurs 
according to plan.  
 
In the section about Wildlife Habitat, it was suggested to clarify the meaning of 
“wildlife compatible fencing.”  
 
Also within that section, Commissioner Dodgen said that we are really not 
preserving wildlife habitat through implementation of this plan, as is stated on 
page 40, noting that there will be development on the top of the bluffs. Ms. 
Drybread responded that the plan supports compact, mixed-use development 
patterns that preserve larger areas of wildlife habitat. The clustered development 
planned on the bluffs will limit the area of development and preserve open space.  
 
In the section about Community Facilities and Services, it was suggested to 
characterize emergency response times as being shortened or maintained as a 
result of the growth patterns described in that section. 
 

8 
 



It was suggested that Sweetwater Park be added to the list of parks included 
within the larger Lone Tree community (Parks and Recreational Facilities 
section). 
 
In the Transit Section, commissioners felt that we should list light rail stations by 
their formal names. 
 
Commissioner Steele stated that this has been a very educational process; 
however, in the future, rather than try to update the entire plan, consider working 
on updating one section in detail – such as spending a year on land use. 
 
Ms. Drybread stated that several of the sections are intertwined and it would be 
difficult to work on sections independently rather than as a whole. 
Commissioners Dodgen, Kirchner, and Sippel agreed that it was better to review 
the entire plan. 
 
All the commissioners thanked staff for their efforts and agreed that it was helpful 
to have the different entity updates throughout last year to provide a good 
foundation of information on which to solidify the update. 
 
Ms. Drybread stated that taken by the Lone Tree Photo Club would be added to 
the document, and that the document would be published to be viewed online. 
Commissioner Sippel stated that it would be useful to create hyperlinks to the 
different sections when they are referred to in the text. 
 
Vice Chair Kirchner moved to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan 
to the City Council, Commissioner Steele seconded, and the motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 
 

9. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, Commissioner Dodgen moved to adjourn the 
meeting, Commissioner Kirchner seconded, and the meeting was adjourned at 
8:55 p.m. 
 
These minutes have been reviewed and confirmed by  
 

 
_________________________  (name), on __________________(date) 
 
 

9 
 



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
TO:  City of Lone Tree Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
FOR:  July 28, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: Parkway Filing 1, a Replat of Block 3, Lot 1 and Tract H  

Final Plat 
 Project File #SB15-51 
 
Owner:     Representative: 
Argonaut Holdings, LLC   JR Engineering, Jim Fitzmorris 
300 Renaissance Center, 19th Floor 7200 S. Alton Way, Suite C400 
Detroit, Michigan 48265   Centennial, CO  80112 
 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:    July 28, 2015 
City Council Meeting Date:       August 18, 2015 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
A. SUMMARY: 

 
This report is provided for informational purposes only as it pertains to a replat 
application that is being processed concurrently with the rezoning and Site 
Improvement Plan amendment items also on the Planning Commission agenda. 
Per the Lone Tree Subdivision Code, the Planning Commission does not review 
or make recommendations on Replats (they are considered and approved by 
City Council or City Manager, as applicable).   

 
B. LOCATION: 

 
The site is located southeast of the intersection of County Line Road and Acres 
Green Drive (between County Line Road and Parkway Drive).   

 
 



Parkway Filing 1, a Replat of Block 3, Lot 1 and Tract H 
Project SB15-51 
 

2 
 

C. BACKGROUND: 
 
The applicant is re-submitting the Replat application that was previously 
approved by the City Council on July 16, 2013 but was never recorded (Project 
SB13-23).   
 
The Replat application that will be heard and acted on by City Council provides 
for the:   
 

• Division of the property into 4 lots for the potential future sale of the lots; 
for property tax simplification; and to simplify cross-lot access and 
maintenance agreements.   

• Vacation of a roadway easement originally granted by the former property 
owner to Douglas County in anticipation of a future road.  The roadway 
was never built and the easement is no longer needed.  Douglas County 
subsequently deeded its interest over to the City of Lone Tree for formal 
vacation of the easement.   

• Replat of the east property line to allow for a land swap between the City 
and Argonaut Holdings for an additional parking area and a new open 
space area for trail purposes. The accompanying rezoning and Site 
Improvement Plan amendment application covers only that additional 
land being transferred from the City to the applicant for the construction of 
additional parking. The property being deeded by the City to the applicant 
for parking and landscape improvements is 0.39 acres; the property being 
deeded by Argonaut Holdings to the City for open space and trail 
purposes is 0.25 acres. The land swap will allow South Suburban Parks 
and Recreation the ability to legally maintain their existing trail segment 
on this property.  

 
D. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

  
None needed. 

 
 

E. ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Development Application 
• Letter of Authorization 
• Narrative 
• Referral Responses 
• Replat exhibit 
 



























A Westrian Company

GENERAL MOTORS SUBDIVISION
BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 3 AND TRACT H, PARKWAY SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1

A PART OF THE NORTH ONE-HALF OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M.
CITY OF LONE TREE, COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF COLORADO

22.1041 ACRES, 4 LOTS & 1 TRACT
SB15-



A Westrian Company

GENERAL MOTORS SUBDIVISION
BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 3 AND TRACT H, PARKWAY SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1

A PART OF THE NORTH ONE-HALF OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M.
CITY OF LONE TREE, COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF COLORADO

22.1041 ACRES, 4 LOTS & 1 TRACT
SB15-

A
C

R
ES

 G
R

EE
N

 D
R

IV
E

PARKWAY DRIVE

COUNTY LINE ROAD

STATE HIGHWAY C-470



A Westrian Company

GENERAL MOTORS SUBDIVISION
BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK 3 AND TRACT H, PARKWAY SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1

A PART OF THE NORTH ONE-HALF OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M.
CITY OF LONE TREE, COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF COLORADO

22.1041 ACRES, 4 LOTS & 1 TRACT
SB15-

PARKWAY DRIVE

STATE HIGHWAY C-470

COUNTY LINE ROAD

W
ILLO

W
 STR

EET



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
TO:  City of Lone Tree Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
FOR:  July 28, 2015 Planning Commission Hearing 
 
SUBJECT: Parkway Filing 1  

Rezoning from POS to C1 
 Project File #SB15-37 
 
Owner:     Representative: 
Argonaut Holdings, LLC   JR Engineering, Jim Fitzmorris 
300 Renaissance Center, 19th Floor 7200 S. Alton Way, Suite C400 
Detroit, Michigan 48265   Centennial, CO  80112 
 
 
Planning Commission Hearing Date:    July 28, 2015 
City Council Hearing Date:       August 18, 2015 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
A. REQUEST: 
 

Approval to rezone 0.39 acres of land from Parks and Open Space (POS) to 
Commercial 1 (C-1).  The property is currently owned by the City of Lone 
Tree but will be conveyed to the applicant as part of a “land swap” as further 
described in this report. 
 
 

B. LOCATION: 
 

The property is located west of Willow Creek and between County Line Road 
and Parkway Drive, adjacent to the Ed Bozarth Chevrolet dealership. 
 

  



Parkway Filing 1 Rezoning 
Project ZR15-37 

C. BACKGROUND: 
 

The property in question will be added to the Ed Bozarth Chevrolet site and 
used for additional parking. The current zoning (POS) does not permit parking 
as an allowable use. Therefore, the property will be rezoned to C-1 – the 
same classification as the rest of the dealership property. In turn, the City will 
receive (0.25 acres) that will continue to be used for trail and open space 
purposes. These uses are permitted in the current C-1 zoning classification 
for the property.  
 
The respective properties will be replatted as part of a replat application 
(Project SB15-51) being processed concurrently with this rezoning 
application. The change of ownership will take place separately through 
deeds. 
 
Also heard following this rezoning application, is a request for Site 
Improvement Plan approval that will provide the Planning Commission and 
City Council the details of the land use proposed by the applicant (i.e., 
parking, landscaping, and drainage). 
 
 

D. APPROVAL CRITERIA: 
  
 The following criteria shall, where applicable, be considered by the Planning 

Commission and City Council in the review of rezoning applications:    
 

(1) Whether the application is in compliance with the requirements of the 
Lone Tree Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan: 

 
Staff comment:  
The application is in compliance with the requirements of the Lone Tree 
Zoning Code as discussed in the approval criteria to follow. 
 
The application is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The 
property is located within the City’s Planning and Urban Growth Area. The 
rezoning supports the City’s Comprehensive Plan goal for creating a 
“vibrant and sustainable economy for the Lone Tree community” and in 
retaining businesses that “contribute to local economic base 
diversification.”   
 
While the property being rezoned is designated on the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan for Parks and Open Space, the land trade being 
heard concurrent with this application (Project SB15-51), will allow South 
Suburban Parks and Recreation the ability to legally maintain their existing 
trail segment on this property, furthering the Comprehensive Plan goal of 
“providing quality community facilities and services for the Lone Tree 



Parkway Filing 1 Rezoning 
Project ZR15-37 

community in an efficient and cost-effective manner” and by “support[ing] 
healthy lifestyles and meet[ing] the evolving recreational needs of the 
community be ensuring that adequate parks, trails, and recreational 
facilities are provided in a timely manner.” 

(2) Whether the application is compliant with all applicable statutory 
provisions: 

 
Staff comment:  
This application is compliant with all applicable statutory provisions.  
Colorado Revised Statutes provides municipalities the power to rezone 
properties for specific land uses in furtherance of the public health, safety 
and welfare.   

 
(3) Whether there has been substantial change in the character or economic 

condition of the neighborhood: 
 
  Staff comment:  

 The four dealerships on the larger property have been in the City nearly 
since its incorporation nearly 20 years ago. The character of the 
neighborhood has evolved in a manner consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, providing for diverse commercial uses in the City’s 
Urban Growth Area.   

(4) Whether the general impact of the zoning would adversely impact the 
provisions of public facilities and services: 

 
 Staff comment:  
 Public facilities and services, including those provided by Special Districts 

such as fire protection and City services such as police protection, and the 
adequate provision for drainage facilities and maintenance are not 
expected to be adversely impacted by the rezoning to allow for additional 
parking. The location and nature of the rezoning is consistent with the City 
Comprehensive Plan, which anticipates provision of services 
commensurate with growth.   

 
(5) Whether the proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding land 

uses: 
 
  Staff comment:  

The zoning is compatible with surrounding land uses including: 
 

  West: Auto dealerships 
  North: County Line Road 
  East: Willow Creek drainage and trail and commercial development 
  South: Parkway Drive and C-470 

 



Parkway Filing 1 Rezoning 
Project ZR15-37 

(6) Whether the subject land is suitable  for the intended use and is 
compatible with the natural environment: 

 Staff comment:  
 The land use can be made suitable for the expansion of parking, with the 

addition of a retaining wall and landscaping for screening of parked cars.  
Though the addition of parking will affect the 100-Year Flood 
Plain/Floodway, the applicant is working with Lone Tree Public Works 
staff, and they are comfortable that they can issue a Flood Plain 
Development Permit at the appropriate time.   

 
(7) Whether the intended land use would create traffic congestion or burden 

the existing road network.  
 

Staff comment:  
There will be no appreciable impact on traffic congestion or burden on the 
existing road network with this rezoning. 
 
 

E. SERVICE PROVIDERS: 
 

Water:  Southgate Water District 
Sanitation: Southgate Sanitation District 
Police:  Lone Tree Police  
Fire:  South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 

 
 
F. REFERRALS: 

 
The project was referred to utility providers, South Suburban Parks and 
Recreation, South Metro Fire Rescue, Urban Drainage and Flood Control 
District, and Public Works. No concerns have been expressed by these 
referral entities.   
 
 

G. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff finds that the application is in compliance with the City of Lone Tree 
Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and Subdivision Code. 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend to City Council 
approval of the rezoning request from POS to C-1.   

 
 

H. ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Development Application 



Parkway Filing 1 Rezoning 
Project ZR15-37 

• Narrative 
• Referral Responses 
• Legal Notices 
• Rezoning Exhibit 

 
 

END 



























GENERAL MOTORS SUBDIVISION
PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS LOCATED IN THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

CITY OF LONE TREE, COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF COLORADO

ZR15-37

REZONING FOR PARKING LOT EXPANSION

”



GENERAL MOTORS SUBDIVISION
PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS LOCATED IN THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH, RANGE 67 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN

CITY OF LONE TREE, COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, STATE OF COLORADO

ZR15-37

REZONING FOR PARKING LOT EXPANSION

PARKWAY DRIVE

STATE HIGHWAY C-470

COUNTY LINE ROAD
W

ILLO
W

 S
TR

EET

W
ILLO

W
 CREEK

REZONING AREA



 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
TO:  City of Lone Tree Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: July 21, 2015 
 
FOR:  July 28, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4  

Site Improvement Plan Amendment 
 Project File #SP15-36 
 
Owner:     Representative: 
Argonaut Holdings, LLC   JR Engineering, Jim Fitzmorris 
300 Renaissance Center, 19th Floor 7200 S. Alton Way, Suite C400 
Detroit, Michigan 48265   Centennial, CO  80112 
 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:    July 28, 2015 
City Council Meeting Date:       August 18, 2015 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

A. REQUEST: 
 

Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) amendment to construct 62 
additional parking spaces on 6.129 acres at the Ed Bozarth Chevrolet 
dealership. 
 
 

B. LOCATION: 
 

The property is located west of Willow Creek and between County Line 
Road and Parkway Drive. 

  
Direction Zoning Land Use 
North  County Line Road 
South ROW C-470 
East Open Space  Willow Creek open space and trail 
West C-1 GM dealerships 



Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4 
Project SP15-36  

2 
 

C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The site currently slopes down to the creek from west to east and consists 
of native grasses, and coniferous and deciduous trees.  
 
 

D. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
Water:   Southgate Water District 
Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District 
Police:  Lone Tree Police 
Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 

 
 

E. BACKGROUND: 
 

The application is processed in tandem with a Replat request (Project 
SB15-51) and a Rezoning request (Project ZR15-37).  The Replat allows 
for a land swap of open space and trail property for land that can be 
constructed for additional parking for the Ed Bozarth Chevrolet dealership.  
The Rezoning allows for the subject property to be used for additional 
parking for commercial uses (as commercial parking is not allowed in the 
C-1 zone district). The Site Improvement Plan, provides specifics related 
to the layout of the parking stalls, the construction of a retaining wall, 
landscaping, snow storage, drainage, lighting, fencing, etc. 
 
 

F. DESCRIPTION: 
 

Zoning.  The land is currently zoned Parks and Open Space (POS).  The 
land proposed for parking is the subject of a request being heard with this 
Site Improvement Plan application, to rezone the land from POS to 
Commercial 1 (C1).     
 
Access.  Access to the additional parking is provided via a service drive 
from County Line Road and also from Parkway Drive.   
 
Parking. The addition of 62 parking spaces is proposed with this 
application. There is no required parking ratio for car dealerships in the 
City’s zoning code, as it is more a function of vehicle inventory space than 
parking demanded by shoppers.   

 
Landscaping.  The landscaped area comprises 15 percent of the project 
site (the minimum requirement by the City Code is 15 percent), and 
includes a combination of landscaping to help screen the parked cars 
(primarily Feather Reed Grasses and upright evergreen shrubs), trees in 



Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4 
Project SP15-36  

3 
 

the parking lot as required by code, the replanting of native grasses, and 
the construction of a retaining wall.  Seven trees will be removed with this 
proposal, and four trees added.   
 
Lighting. Lights are consistent with City standards and parking lot light 
fixtures are shielded in keeping with the City’s regulations that promote 
dark skies.  Some existing parking lot lighting is proposed to be moved at 
the request of South Suburban Parks and Recreation. 
 
Snow Storage. A snow storage area is depicted on the plan on the north 
side of the new parking area, and appears adequate for the additional 
parking.   
 
 

G. REFERRALS:    
 
The project was referred to utility providers, South Suburban Parks and 
Recreation, South Metro Fire Rescue, Urban Drainage and Flood Control 
District, and Public Works.  
 
South Suburban Parks and Recreation responded with concerns related to 
lighting, fencing, and the extension of a drainage pipe.  These concerns 
have or will be addressed prior to final City Council approval. 
 
The City Public Works Department responded that the plan appears 
acceptable, and that their specific comments will need to be addressed 
prior to final City Council approval.   
 

 
H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements 
of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, and the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
SIP to City Council, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of 
Lone Tree Public Works approval. 

2. The concerns expressed by South Suburban Parks and Recreation 
be addressed prior to final City Council approval. 

 
  



Parkway Filing 1, Block 3, Lot 4 
Project SP15-36  

4 
 

 
I. ATTACHMENTS 

 
• Development Application 
• Letter of Authorization 
• Narrative 
• Referral Responses 
• SIP 
 

 
 
 
END 
 































PARKWAY FILING 1, LOT 4, BLOCK 3
AMENDING #SP12-53

6.129 ACRES

SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN, #SP15-36

X:
\1

56
00

00
.a

ll\
15

63
70

0\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\S
he

et
 D

w
gs

\S
ite

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n\

15
63

70
0C

V0
1.

dw
g,

 7
/1

3/
20

15
 2

:3
8:

49
 P

M
, P

D
F 

XC
ha

ng
e 

La
nd

sc
ap

e.
pc

3



PARKWAY FILING 1, LOT 4, BLOCK 3
AMENDING #SP12-53

6.129 ACRES

SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN, #SP15-36

PARKWAY DRIVE

STATE HIGHWAY C-470

COUNTY LINE ROAD

W
ILLO

W
 S

TR
EET

W
ILLO

W
 CR

EEK

X:
\1

56
00

00
.a

ll\
15

63
70

0\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\S
he

et
 D

w
gs

\S
it

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
\1

56
37

00
SI

P0
1.

dw
g,

 7
/1

3/
20

15
 2

:3
8:

59
 P

M
, P

D
F 

XC
ha

ng
e 

La
nd

sc
ap

e.
pc

3



PARKWAY FILING 1, LOT 4, BLOCK 3
AMENDING #SP12-53

6.129 ACRES

SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN, #SP15-36

COUNTY LINE ROAD

X:
\1

56
00

00
.a

ll\
15

63
70

0\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\S
he

et
 D

w
gs

\S
ite

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n\

15
63

70
0g

r0
1.

dw
g,

 7
/1

3/
20

15
 2

:3
9:

06
 P

M
, P

D
F 

XC
ha

ng
e 

La
nd

sc
ap

e.
pc

3













PARKWAY FILING 1, LOT 4, BLOCK 3
AMENDING #SP12-53

6.129 ACRES

SITE IMPROVEMENT PLAN, #SP15-36

COUNTY LINE ROAD

X:
\1

56
00

00
.a

ll\
15

63
70

0\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\S
he

et
 D

w
gs

\S
it

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
\1

56
37

00
LP

01
.d

w
g,

 7
/1

3/
20

15
 2

:3
9:

16
 P

M
, P

D
F 

XC
ha

ng
e 

La
nd

sc
ap

e.
pc

3


	1 -   7-28-15 PC Agenda
	2 -   7-14-15 PC Minutes
	MINUTES OF THE
	Lone Tree Planning Commission Meeting

	3 -   GM Replat Binder1
	1 - GM replat PC staff report II
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: July 21, 2015
	FOR:  July 28, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting

	2 - GM misc
	3 - GM replat exhibit

	4 -   GM Rezoning Binder1
	2015 GM Rezoning Staff Report II
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: July 21, 2015
	FOR:  July 28, 2015 Planning Commission Hearing
	B. LOCATION:
	C. BACKGROUND:
	D. APPROVAL CRITERIA:
	E. SERVICE PROVIDERS:
	F. Referrals:
	G. Staff FINDINGS AND Recommendation:


	GM Rezoning Misc
	GM Rezoning Plan
	1563700CV01 24x36 Construction Title (1)
	1563700ReZoning Site Improvement Plan (1)


	5 -   GM SIP Binder1 red II
	2015 GM SIP Staff Report II
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: July 21, 2015
	FOR:  July 28, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting
	C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS:
	The application is processed in tandem with a Replat request (Project SB15-51) and a Rezoning request (Project ZR15-37).  The Replat allows for a land swap of open space and trail property for land that can be constructed for additional parking for th...
	F. DESCRIPTION:
	The project was referred to utility providers, South Suburban Parks and Recreation, South Metro Fire Rescue, Urban Drainage and Flood Control District, and Public Works.
	South Suburban Parks and Recreation responded with concerns related to lighting, fencing, and the extension of a drainage pipe.  These concerns have or will be addressed prior to final City Council approval.
	The City Public Works Department responded that the plan appears acceptable, and that their specific comments will need to be addressed prior to final City Council approval.
	H. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, and the Comprehensive Plan.
	Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of the SIP to City Council, subject to the following conditions:
	1. Final approval of the Site Improvement Plan is subject to City of Lone Tree Public Works approval.
	2. The concerns expressed by South Suburban Parks and Recreation be addressed prior to final City Council approval.
	END

	GM Misc SIP
	GM SIP Exhibit
	1555000SIP 2015-07-13
	Landscape Plans
	sheet 4 - 7 13 15
	sheet 5 - 7 13 15
	sheet 6 - 7 13 15
	sheet 7 - 7 13 15
	sheet 8 - 7 13 15

	1555000SIP 2015-07-13



